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Date:
April 10, 2008
To:
All Prospective Contractors

RE:
Request for Proposal (Secondary Method), Baseline Infrastructure Inventory and Information Framework #IWM07024
Addendum No. 2
To the Request for Proposal (Secondary Method)
1. Q:  Do I need to include an estimate for the Optional Work Tasks in my proposal?
A: Used oil/oil filter-related tasks are no longer “optional” as the Board has approved full funding for them.
Although listed separately from the rest of the SOW tasks, the tire-related “optional” tasks are part of the RFP and should be addressed separately in your proposal package.  The optional tire-related tasks are conditional on the Board approving funding in the reallocation of Tire Recycling Management Fund money for the tasks (scheduled for the April 2008 meeting).  If funding is approved, the work plan and cost estimates for tire-related tasks listed in your proposal will be reviewed and incorporated into the final contract.  If funding is not approved, the optional tire tasks and tire task cost estimates will not be considered in the staff review of the proposal; hence the need for tire tasks and costs to be addressed separately in the proposal package.

2. Q:  Please elaborate on how the Liquidated Damages clause will be tied to the project schedule and individual deliverables. Will this clause be used for the overall project or individual deliverables?
A:  Liquidated Damages are not often applied, but CIWMB reserves the right to apply such damages to individual deliverables if the contract manager determines that the delay will seriously disrupt the subsequent phases of the project, or the successful completion of the overall project. 

3. Q:  Regarding exceptions for delays beyond a contractor’s control, how will CIWMB define delays beyond our control? 

A: The contract’s Special Terms and Conditions state:  “ Neither the CIWMB nor the Contractor, including the Contractor's subcontractor(s), if any, will be responsible hereunder for any delay, default or nonperformance of this Agreement, to the extent that such delay, default or nonperformance is caused by an act of God, weather, accident, labor strike, fire, explosion, riot, war, rebellion, sabotage, or flood, or any other cause beyond the reasonable control of such party.”
4. Q:  When completing the Good Faith Effort, are there a minimum number of contacts required for the SB and/or DVBE sub consultants?

A:  Following the steps of the Good Faith Effort form, you must contact all SB and/or DVBE consultants identified through your own research, through contact with the CIWMB, DGS, and other State agencies, and businesses responding directly to your firm’s solicitation in a trade or focus publication. 

5. Q:  Page 20 (Cost Breakdown Section) states, “The amount identified on the cost breakdown may not be changed and will remain in effect for the life of the agreement.”  Which “amount(s)” does this sentence refer to that may not change during the contract – hourly rates, total labor, total non-personnel, total other? Specifically, can the contractor expect that budgeted funds may be shifted from one task to another, with CIWMB approval, if such adjustments are deemed appropriate as the project unfolds, and as long as the maximum contract budget is not exceeded?

A:  Yes, although the awarded amount of the funds cannot be exceeded, shifting of funds between line items is permissible for sufficient reasons with written approval by the CIWMB contract manager and an amendment to the contract.
6. Q:  In the Cost Proposal Sheet (Attachment A) may proposers list classifications (rather than individuals) and hours, and be allowed flexibility in identifying which individuals will be billed at which classifications as the project unfolds? 
A:  The bid will be evaluated, in part, based on the key personnel’s knowledge, expertise, experience and qualifications for their assigned tasks as shown on their resumes.  Therefore, these core individuals must be identified in the proposal and the budget breakdown.  Non-critical personnel may be identified by classification and salary.  Any subsequent substitution of identified personnel must be with persons of equivalent quality, experience and history of results and with the approval in writing by the CIWMB contract manager.
7. Q:  Does the CIWMB’s confidentiality policy and other applicable state statutes allow that the contractor could commit to survey respondents that their firm’s data will not be shared with the state, if that is a precondition of their participation in the survey?
A:  Collected data would have to be shared with the state in some format to be useful; but depending on the use, it need not be raw data or complete in every detail.  The State’s Public Records Act allows the CIWMB  to restrict access to specified collected information, if required.  The CIWMB has, in the past, also used contractors and academic institutions to filter out sensitive data, substitute case numbers to mask identities of data suppliers, or provide consolidated or summary information.  Cooperation of information suppliers will be critical to the success of this project and the CIWMB is open to suggestions on the best way for the contractor to collect current data and for the CIWMB to collect data in the future for updates. The methods used for different types of entities in the study may also differ depending on their interest in keeping information private. The proposer’s experience with collection and use of confidential data should inform their proposed strategy for use of appropriate methods. 
In terms of CIWMB policy on distribution of collected data, raw data is never made available to users.  Transaction-based data or sensitive information may be made available to users after it is put into an aggregated or grouped format and checked for completeness and accuracy prior to release.  Any data that does not stand alone and requires analysis and trained interpretation is not released for general consumption.  A view, summary or interpretation of the data can be made available.

8. Q:  Please provide more information on the CIWMB’s current information technology architecture:

a) Database software used in the GIS environment?
A:  GIS software utilized by the CIWMB is ESRI ArcSDE 9.2 running on Microsoft SQL Server 2005.   ArcSDE is the preferred format.  Shape files are acceptable but no personal GeoDatabases will be accepted.  The current GIS environment does support address matching to location, as well as dynamic map interface to obtain a point and associated information. We also have made use of address washing software (MelissaData Address Object) to help improve our GIS address matching (see http://www.ciwmb.ca.gov/RMDZ/AllZones.asp). 

We do not currently support allowing a user to click and drag a point or the collection of geographic features more complex than a point, although we could explore using these features as they are supported in ESRI products.

In addition to our ESRI GIS efforts, we have done some pilot projects using very basic mapping pages on the CIWMB Internet using Google Maps (see “Map” links on search results page from http://erecycle.org/search.asp). At this time we don’t have any specific plans to adopt Google Maps more widely.  

b) Database software used in the non-GIS environment?

A:  See answers to Q#13 and Q# 18

c) Operating system is used in the CIWMB server environment (Unix, Microsoft, Linux)?

A:  The CIWMB’s Information Management Branch consists of 45 permanent staff, consultants, and student assistants. The branch offers a complete array of IT services to all CIWMB staff and Cal/EPA agency staff, including network services, remote access services, help desk services, support of a standard desktop environment for all staff (currently Windows XP, Office 2003, with an upgrade to Vista and Office 2007 shortly), web development/content services, and custom application development services. 

In general most services and servers are based on Microsoft technologies and offerings, including Windows desktop and Windows Server 2003 operating systems, Microsoft Office desktop productivity applications, Exchange 2007, SQL Server 2005, Internet Information Server, Windows SharePoint Server, Microsoft Office SharePoint Server, Forefront Antivirus, etc. IMB does not currently support or have any immediate plans to support Unix/Linux servers.

In recent years all CIWMB custom application development has focused on web-based applications using ASP.NET. Current web applications are developed using ASP.NET 2.0, C#, Visual Studio 2005, Microsoft Enterprise Library for .NET for many data access operations, and an internal set of templates and code libraries called SASCore that provide various custom features focused on the specific issues in the CIWMB and Cal/EPA environment such as security and user interface design.
9. Q:  What database software does CIWMB currently use to support its data gathering and reporting needs? Is the expectation that the same database software be used for the design and development of this system?

A: See response to Q #8(a), Q #13 and Q #15
10. Q:  Should the GIS database environment design be limited to what is stored in ArcSDE (no File-based or Personal GeoDatabases, shape files, etc)? 
A: See response to Q # 8 (a)

11. Q:  In Phase 4, Task L, item d: does this include the web-based collection of location data?  If so, does this location-finding functionality include:

a) Address matching to location

b) Clicking on a map-interface to obtain a point and associating with a record

c) Allowing the user to move a placed point

d) The collection of geographic features more complex than a point (e.g. line or a polygon) 

A: See response to Q # 8 (C)

12. Q:  In Phase 4, Task L, item d: 

a) What level of security is required to ensure the users are correctly identified?

b) Does CIWMB already provide secure access to suppliers, and if so, what authentication process is used?

c) Is it envisioned that the current authentication process will be used for this project?

A: The CIWMB does support several applications where businesses submit and/or maintain data specific to their company via the CIWMB Internet sites (e.g. Waste Tire Management System, Recycled Content Products Database). All applications that require authentication are hosted on CIWMB web servers using an https URL, public key certificates, and SSL encryption. 

All recent and future CIWMB-developed or supported web applications accessed by non-CIWMB/CalEPA staff will authenticate using our Cal/EPA WebPass credentialing scheme, where users can establish an email-based username and password that can be used on all CIWMB-developed applications (see https://secure.calepa.ca.gov/webpass/). Some secured web services will be released by June 2007 that could support off-site use of WebPass authentication for trusted contractors/vendors. The Cal/EPA WebPass authentication scheme will also be used on public Windows SharePoint Services (WSS) that will be released during May and could support secured access to team sites, surveys, and other tools supported by WSS. 

Depending on the recommendations of the contractor, IMB programmers should be able to develop solutions that provide the appropriate level of security using the current WebPass security layer depending on the type of data collection identified and implemented.

13. Q:  In Phase 4, Task L, item e: Is CIWMB currently using reporting software?  If so, what products and technology?
A:  For distribution on the Internet, CIWMB currently utilizes reports developed in .NET and Microsoft SQL Server Reporting Services (SSRS).  For in-house use CIWMB staff utilizes .NET developed reports that are integrated into the web applications, SSRS reports developed by IMB, and in some cases ad hoc data access through MS Access databases and Excel spreadsheets with read-only access to selected tables/views. Based on previous experiences, IMB no longer actively supports Crystal Reports. Program staff makes regular use of Microsoft Excel for analysis and querying of data. Additionally, the CIWMB currently owns one user license for SPSS and could purchase additional ones if modeling tools coming out of the project were best served by this type of software.
14. Q:  What types of reporting tools does CIWMB currently use to analyze data gathered?
A: See response to Q #13
15. Q:  In Phase 4, Task L, item f: Is CIWMB currently using tools to provide surveys to external users?  If so, what technology is being used?

A:  IMB supports survey instruments in several different ways. Very simple surveys with 10-20 data points and very simple questions are typically implemented as basic web forms on the CIWMB Internet site and data is collected in our Web Intake Form System (WIFS) where CIWMB staff can periodically extract collected data into a spreadsheet. 

More extensive surveys with more complicated logic but no business needs for immediate storage/retrieval from CIWMB enterprise database servers are created with commercial web-based survey software called SurveyKey.com. This is a subscription service that allows us to build surveys using their tools.  Survey response data is stored on the vendor’s server for eventual retrieval by CIWMB staff via reporting outputs like MS Excel spreadsheets. 

In coming months the CIWMB will implement an Internet-facing Windows SharePoint Services (WSS) site using Cal/EPA WebPass authentication. WSS supports fairly basic surveys.

Occasionally some surveys require more immediate access by CIWMB staff or integration with other CIWMB data sources. In those cases, surveys are typically created as custom applications using current CIWMB web application development standards.

16. Q:  The City of SF has an IT union that does not allow external web developer contracts; does CIWMB or the state have something similar?

A:  The CIWMB does not have any specific restrictions on external web development.  However, the CIWMB has invested considerable program staff and Information Management Branch staff time in the development and ongoing maintenance of CIWMB web sites, and has traditionally made limited use of external web developers.  When they have been used, IMB staffs have provided contractors with the pertinent CIWMB web standards.  Because the CIWMB (and all other state agencies) are mandated to use standard state templates, all projects must adhere to these standards as well. 

17. Q:  Are you expecting to make any changes to the software that is being used to support the CIWMB website? Will GIF files and Google Earth continue to be used to display graphics and maps?

A:  All CIWMB web sites are hosted on Microsoft servers using Internet Information Server, FrontPage Server Extensions, and dynamic content using ASP.NET (and some legacy pages using Classic ASP 3.0). The only specific changes planned for this environment in the future is a migration from authoring with FrontPage 2003 to Expressions Web and server access from FrontPage Server Extensions to WEBDAV by the end of 2008. 

The CIWMB web standards currently support both GIFs and JPEGs images, and both are used for static maps in various locations on the CIWMB Internet site. As part of a pilot project, Google Maps have been used for basic location maps. However, with the new ASP.NET-based functionality supported in ESRI’s ArcSDE 9.2, IMB anticipates making heavier use of this internal resource for basic mapping. 

18. Q:  Can you define more specifically the respective roles of the contractor and of CIWMB’s Information Management Branch in developing the model, databases, spreadsheets, websites, geographic information systems and other tools listed under Task L on page 27?  Specifically:

a) Does the CIWMB envision that the contractor will build a database for use in gathering and managing data in Phase 3, or rather that IMB will build this database and maintain it with the contractor’s input, and coordination (under Phase 4)?

b) We assume the contractor will be expected to provide to IMB a set of data that has already been checked and validated.  We further assume that the contractor need not build a user interface suitable for general public use, and that, rather, the contractor will coordinate with IMB as it builds the user interface and beta tests it.  Is this consistent with the CIWMB’s expectations?
A:  The general goal of the contract is to develop datasets and analysis tools that the CIWMB would use on an ongoing basis to meet program needs. In the approval of the contract, the Board made clear that the outputs of the contracts should be integrated with existing CIWMB databases and applications, and be supportable on an ongoing basis by CIWMB IT and program staff. Based on this direction, the contractor would be developing (in coordination with CIWMB program and IT staff) recommendations/plans for datasets and tools that conform to the CIWMB technical environment, which is outlined elsewhere in this document. These plans would then generally be developed by the Information Management Branch with input/coordination from the contractor.

As the contractor develops recommendations for datasets and tools, it should develop (non-functional) user interface prototypes to ensure that all parties have a general understanding of what a fully implemented product would look like, and to allow IMB staff to confirm the user interface will work with in-house technologies and sufficiently comply with CIWMB and state IT standards.

Certainly one of the most important outputs from the contractor will be developing the data specifications/dictionary relevant to the contract’s goals, consulting with appropriate CIWMB staff on refining these specifications and ensuring they will be integrated with existing CIWMB databases, documenting the policies and procedures that will be used to collect the data and deal with normal and unusual circumstances, and then recommending the most effective approach to gathering this data from facility operators and businesses. The contractor should have the industry knowledge to determine the most effective method to collect data, which may rely on manual processes (e.g., personal interviews, phone calls, paper mailings) , more technical approaches for which the contractor would develop specifications for IMB to develop (e.g., web-based surveys), or some combination of these. Contractor recommendations in this area should also take into consideration if/how the data collection approach could be handled by CIWMB staff in the future. 

As the contractor is developing/prototyping data modeling tools/methodologies, they should make recommendations on whether the modeling tool would be appropriate for public access, or should be accessed and interpreted to others by CIWMB staff. In some cases complex modeling tools may have such a complex user-interface that they are too complex to use/understand by a non-expert user. In some cases modeling tools may require significant framing of the data to make sure they are used/interpreted appropriately. And in other cases, it may not be cost effective to make a public web-based interface if the tools are primarily going to be used by internal staff. Technologies to be considered for modeling tools would be any portion of the SQL Server 2005 Suite (including SSRS), MS Excel, MS Access and SPSS.  However, all modeling tool specifications should include options for summarizing data for release to the public. The data modeling tools should be documented using standard technical documentation including an entity relationship diagram, process flows of the model, relevant policies and caveats related to the tool’s use, and a general description of the function of the tool that would be understandable to CIWMB program staff.

c) Can you define in more detail the “programming specifications” that the CIWMB envisions the contractor to provide to IMB?  Does the CIWMB envision that the contractor will essentially design the database schema or also the user interface, program flow, protocols and procedures for using the new system, etc.?

A:  The RFP does not make any reference to “programming specifications”. However, in Phase 4/Task L, it mentions “program specifications.” These would be the specifications such as a data dictionary, data collection policies and procedures, user interface prototypes, data structures and formulas necessary for models, etc.  IMB will provide the contractor with the CIWMB’s database field/table naming standards, web user interface guidelines/standards, and other internal technical guidelines/standards as relevant to assist the contractor in successfully developing specifications that meet in-house standards and are usable in the CIWMB technical environment.
19. Q:  What is the plan for the work beyond this contract?  Will all application and database development activities be performed by CIWMB IT staff?

A:  See response to Q#18
20. Q:  For the proposed technology environment, how much detail is being requested in the response to the proposal

A:  See response to Q#18

21. Q:  How much detail is being requested for the contracted solution phase?

A:  See response to Q#18
22. Q:  Does the solution need to conform to the existing CIWMB environment?

A:  See response to Q#18
23. Q:  This project consists of the development of a 1.  Comprehensive inventory and model of California’s solid waste activities, and 2. Plan for a technology environment to collect, store, and display the model results.  If you had to weigh the level of effort put into the 1 and 2, how would you expect the effort to be split across these two areas?

A:  The CIWMB is open to suggestions on the best way to handle the workload in this case, and the proposer’s experience with managing projects should inform their choice of appropriate weighting of efforts. Data collection, model development and end user needs and requirements will be related and interdependent. 

24. Q:  The project may involve collecting data considered proprietary by facility operators.  The RFP refers to privacy controls (page 28, Task O.2.f), what type of privacy controls have you incorporated into past contracts approved by the CIWMB. 

A:  See the Answer to Q#7 
25. Q:  Regarding the first sentence under Information (RFP Page 12), can it be revised to add the preface "Subject to the privacy controls incorporated into the contract...?”

A:  CIWMB staff would be reluctant to change the wording of the standard RFP language at this late date. However, privacy controls will be one of the subjects included in the contract.  As part of the contract work plan, the CIWMB’s contract manager will likely direct the contractor to keep some raw data and only provide summary information to the CIWMB for certain types of facilities, businesses or sectors.  At that point it will be clear that the contractor will not be required to submit that information to the CIWMB. The second and third sentences under “Information” on Page 12 indicate that the CIWMB is interested in protecting the confidentiality of sensitive data and other information supplied by stakeholders, as needed and we invite proposers to suggest ways that this can be accomplished within the scope of the project. 
See also the response to Q#7
26. Q:  In Phase 1, Task B, item 3:  

a) Do you have any additional details on your expectations for the stakeholder involvement process?
A:  The CIWMB is open to suggestions on the best way to handle stakeholders, and the proposer’s experience should inform their choice of appropriate methods. Generally, staff has identified three types of stakeholders: information sources, potential users of information tools, and advisors. It will not be possible to interview all possible information sources but those stakeholders that want to participate should be provided an opportunity for input. There will likely be significant overlap in the sources and users.  If some group, such as local government, is not adequately represented in the sources group, then additional steps will be needed to secure additional involvement. There should be a sufficient sample of participants in each stakeholder group to insure that all relevant issues and opinions have been uncovered and that the opinions are representative and not just from a small vocal minority. Advisor stakeholders are persons closely interested in the study itself and/or may help serve as “ambassadors” to increase credibility of the project, participation rates or willingness to provide sensitive information among their group. These can be a few key people who work closely with project staff and/or a wider group who just receive regular progress reports.
The involvement of stakeholders as data providers, both as a part of this study and as continued participants in the upkeep of data in the future will be the key factor in the success of this project.  Staff anticipates a discussion of the proposer’s strategy on how to best insure stakeholder participation in supplying accurate data, and also their back up plans on how to develop a useful model based on less than full data sets. 
b) What are the usage scenarios that you see for internal versus external usage of models and web-based tools?

A:  The Needs Analysis portion of the study should provide this insight.  See also the answer to Q# 18.
27. Q:  Is documentation available (current or recent) that includes user requirements for the inventory and model? 

A:  No. The Needs Analysis portion of the study should provide this insight. 

28. Q:  In Phase 2, Task E, item 5ciii:  How far in the future should the calculations extend, and with what frequency (annually, every five years)?
A:  At the current time, local government solid waste and HHW disposal facility plans address 15 years of capacity and are reviewed for adequacy every five years.  Local government AB 939 (50% goal measurement) reports are submitted annually and progress is reviewed biennially. The Tire Branch does an annual marketing survey.  HHW and Used oil materials collection is reported annually by local governments. Some of these periods are legislatively mandated or are simply traditional practices. CIWMB staffs often use US Census data and CA Dept. of Finance economic estimates and projections. 

CIWMB staffs have suggested that the population and facility projections extend to 2020 using annual change intervals.  Ongoing updates of system model data inputs from stakeholders (materials flows, facilities, etc.) should be done regularly and as major events change (new policies or market conditions, for example). Ideally, an annual or biennial survey process would keep all data reasonable current; however, unless it was highly automated with self-reporting, the data collection task would have major financial and staff resource impacts. 

The CIWMB is open to suggestions on the best way to collect information from stakeholders and project data. The proposer’s experience with managing data and the needs of stakeholders should inform the choice of appropriate reporting periods and forecasts.

29. Q:  During Phase 3 - Data Collection, do you expect the contractor to gather information from every solid waste facility in the state? Or, will sampling and extrapolation be acceptable methods for completing the inventory?

A:  Ideally, we would like a complete inventory of facilities by region or at least those significant facilities responsible for 80% of the materials flow; however, where cooperation is limited, scientific sampling with extrapolations may be necessary. The CIWMB is open to suggestions on the best way to collect information and build a representative and accurate system model.

30. Q:  Which stakeholder group is the primary audience for the new inventory and the data that it contains?

A:  Generally, CIWMB staff is the primary user of our facility and material data along with significant use by local governments, the waste and recycling industries, environmental groups, and consultants; however, a wide variety of stakeholder groups use CIWMB data.  How much each group expects to use the inventory and other data and what it is used for should be included as topics in the needs analysis.

31. Q:  Do you expect the contractor to determine exact material flows from material brokers, end market users, and imports/exports?

A:  Exact to the ton numbers would probably be considered proprietary by information suppliers.  Use of some rounded numbers or range brackets will be allowed, if needed; however the data must be accurate enough to determine and model current practices and predict future infrastructure needs.  The proposer’s knowledge of and experience with collection and use of data should inform their choice of appropriate methods and precision.

32. Q:  Does the $900,000 maximum budget assume that used oil and tires are included in the scope?  How will the maximum budget change if the Board approves inclusion of used oil and tires in the study?  If the Board does not choose to include used oil and/or tires, will the maximum budget be less than $900,000?

A:  $700,000 has already been approved for the Infrastructure contract; $500,000 from the Integrated Waste Management Account and $200,000 from the Used Oil Fund.  At its April 2008 meeting, the Board will consider approval of additional funds in an unknown amount from the Tire Recycling Management Fund.  Staff has requested $200,000 in Tire funding for the “optional” tire related tasks listed in the Infrastructure SOW; but the exact amount to be approved, if any, is up to the Board. The contract SOW tasks and RFP were approved for up to $900,000 on the condition that the funds are also approved. If no tire funds are approved, the optional tire related tasks will not be included in the contract.

33. Q:  Page 6 (bottom) lists 10 examples of material categories to be included in the study, along with sub categories in parentheses for many of these material categories.  Page 6 also references the CIWMB’s waste characterization study, but the listed categories and subcategories do not match exactly those used in the waste characterization study. Page 24 states, “The materials targeted will be municipal and commercial solid waste and recyclable materials.”  On page 8 the RFP implies that household hazardous waste may be added in the future.  And elsewhere the proposal states that used oil (Tasks D, F, G, J and M) and tires (Tasks E, H, K and N) may be added if approved by the Board.

a) Is the list of material categories and sub-categories on page 10 intended to cover the groupings of materials that should each be modeled in the study?

b) Are these suggestions that may be modified or specific requirements that proposals should assume must be modeled separately in the study?

A:  The lists in the Service Need section were developed by staff as a best guess of what the project parameters will encompass; however, the CIWMB is open to suggestions on how to do the project better. For example, since funds and time are limited, not all materials were included in the study; the “Examples” list on Page 6 includes staffs’ opinion of the materials that make up the largest volumes for disposal and the most significant market types for diversion.  The materials listed are not inconsistent with the Waste Characterization categories, but some of the subcategories are consolidated. Discussions with the stakeholders may lead to a modification of the list, and the amount of information available may restrict certain subtypes of materials from being modeled. 

HHW (non-oil) is included as a study material type for only the Needs Analysis portion of the contract.  Staff will present the HHW Needs Analysis and cost results to the Board and seek further direction; there are no present plans to fund additional study of HHW.
Funding has been approved to add the Used Oil/oil filter and DIY data mining tasks in the SOW to the contract.

Funding for the optional Tire tasks listed in the SOW will be considered at the April 2008 Board meeting.

34. Q:  Specifically, the following material categories included in the CIWMB’s waste characterization study are not included in the RFP list on page 6: Electronics, Household Hazardous Waste (other than used oil), Special Waste (other than tires) and mixed residue.  Should proposers assume these missing waste categories are not to be included in the study?

A:  Facilities and materials related to SB 20-covered and non-SB-20 electronics are not part of this study.  However, some electronic materials may wind up in municipal waste and be processed at MSW facilities; these would be counted in some “other” category with other non-studied residuals and do not need to be specifically tracked as a disposed or diverted material.

Used oil is an HHW material that is specifically included in the study.  To the extent that used oil is collected or processed at HHW facilities, those facilities would be part of the study as a disposed or diverted material processor.

HHW (other than used oil) is part of the Needs Analysis portion of the study along with a cost estimate of performing additional tasks.  However; HHW is not a material included in the rest of the study and need not be separately tracked beyond the Needs Analysis stage as a disposed or diverted material.

35. Q:  Page 25 (Task B, 3 at the bottom) states, “The contractor will be responsible for any workshop logistics such as the meeting room, audio visual presentations, handouts, etc.”  Can proposers assume that the use of Cal-EPA meeting rooms, including Internet audio and video broadcast, will be available?  If so, should proposers assume they will need to incur a cost in order to use these resources to complete stakeholder facilitation and other tasks.

A:  CIWMB staff will make every effort to assist the contractor in obtaining project-related use of Cal-EPA Sacramento building meeting rooms and electronic broadcast technologies.  However; these facilities are in heavy demand and the CIWMB cannot guarantee their availability.  CIWMB supplied Cal-EPA site meeting space and available technology would not normally incur a cost; however, some forms of internet access/broadcast may have their own broadband or software fees attached that would be the responsibility of the contractor.

36. Q:  Page 24 (first paragraph) lists “export destinations” among the types of facilities and activities to be inventoried and modeled.  

a) Q:  Does the CIWMB envision that out-of-State, US facilities receiving significant quantities of California generated recyclables or waste would be included in the study?

A:  Out-of-State, US facilities that serve as import suppliers or export destinations will be part of this study, but unless the material amount is significant the categories can probably be consolidated as “Imported to CA Region X” or “exported to Non-CA/USA.  The exact regional areas will be determined as part of the organization phase of the project.”

b) Q:  Does the CIWMB envision that “export destinations” would be defined as countries or regions? Or, rather, does the CIWMB envision "export destinations" would be defined as specific end-use facilities in other states or countries?

A:  Out-of-USA facilities that serve as import suppliers or export destinations will be part of this study, but unless the material amount is significant the categories can probably be consolidated as “Imported to CA Region X” or “exported to Non-USA Region Y” or perhaps “Country Z”. The exact regional or country areas will be determined as part of the organization phase of the project. General end uses, approximate material amounts, and the level of processing and quality grade of the material would be included, but specific foreign end destinations, end uses and other retail marketing details are beyond the scale of this study.”

All other terms, conditions, and requirements of this RFP will remain the same. 

If you have any questions relating to this RFP process, please contact me at (916) 341-6120 or at contracts@ciwmb.ca.gov.

{Original Signed By}

Wendy Roberson

Contract Analyst

Administrative Services Branch
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